
 
 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
 2940 LIMITED LANE NW 
 OLYMPIA WA 98502 
 
Regular Meeting December 9, 2020 

10:00 am 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Be courteous – Please silence all cell phones 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (action item) 
 (Ask for any corrections, additions/omissions) 
 
  
3. CHAIR REPORT 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA (action item) 
 

1. Minutes of Regular Meeting, October 14, 2020 
2. Minutes of Personnel Meeting April 8, 2020 
3. Expenditures and Disbursements – October 9, 2020 – December 3, 2020 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Community Air Toxics program summary 
 
7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Compliance Program Update (Robert Moody, Compliance Manager) 
2. Engineering Program Update (Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager) 
3. Air Quality Program Update (Odelle Hadley, Senior Air Monitoring Technician) 

4. Education and Outreach Update (Dan Nelson, Public Information Officer) 
5. Finance/Administrative Update (Lynn Harding, Administrative Services Manager) 
6. Executive Director’s Report (Fran McNair, Executive Director) 

 
8. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 To discuss any matter suitable for Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110 
 
 
10. ADJOURN 



 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
2940 Limited Lane NW 

Olympia, Washington 98502 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – via Zoom 
 

October 14, 2020 
 

Members present  Jim Cooper, City of Olympia (Chair) 
   Cynthia Pratt, City of Lacey (Vice Chair) 

Greg Brotherton, Jefferson County 
Wes Cormier, Grays Harbor County 
Joan Cathey, City of Tumwater 
 

Members absent Randy Neatherlin, Mason County 
Tye Menser, Thurston County 
Mary Ellen Winborn, Clallam County (10:06 am) 
Mike Runyon, Pacific County 

 
Legal Counsel Jeff Myers and Michael Throgmorton of Law, Lyman, Daniel, Kamerrer 

and Bogdanovich 
 
Staff Present Fran McNair, Executive Director; Robert Moody, Compliance Manager; 

Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager; Odelle Hadley, Air Monitoring 
Supervisor; Dan Nelson, Public Information Officer; Lynn Harding, 
Administrative Services; and Debbie Moody, Office Manager/Recorder 

 
Cooper called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  
 
Cooper asked if everyone was ok with the Agenda. There were no comments, the Agenda was 
accepted on consensus. 
 
CHAIR REPORT 
 
Cooper asked Pratt to give a brief update on the Finance Committee meeting. Pratt noted the 
finance report was very positive, stating we have received 30% in revenue and 27% has been spent 
in the first quarter. Pratt stated we did have a discussion on the Title V program balance, however 
overall, it was a very positive meeting. Harding corrected Pratt, noting the expenditures is currently 
at 24%. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Cooper asked approval of the Consent Agenda.  Cormier moved approval of the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was seconded and carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Rule 1.11 – Federal Regulation Reference Date 
 
R. Moody explained this is the exercise we go through annually to change the date of the Federal 
Rules we have adopted into our regulation. We have not received any public comment. Staff 
recommendation is to approve the date change.  Cooper opened the hearing at 10:05 am and 
asked for any comments. There were none. The hearing was closed at 10:05 am. 



 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 
Pratt moved approval of Rule 1.11-Federal Regulation Reference Date rule change. The motion 
was seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution 279 Budget Amendment 001: Woodsmoke Reduction Grant 
 
Harding noted we are seeking approval to add $35,000 to the Woodstove Reduction program. The 
funds will assist in some of the changes that have taken place in the program. A new task was 
added to the program to assist staff in making it a bit easier to expend the funds in all three 
counties. In brief, we are combining each of the three funds (one for each of the three counties 
participating) into one fund and adding an additional $35,000. 
 
Nelson added we do require pre-approval of jobs prior to spending so we are able to set the funds 
aside. Currently, Nelson continued, out of the $295,000-which includes the additional $35,000-we 
have allocated $200,700 to date. Adding in administrative and marketing costs we would need to 
include about $59,000. We anticipate spending the entire amount and hope to request additional 
funds after the first of the year. 
 
Brotherton asked if we moved from the word Bounty to Recycling. Nelson stated we have and it 
was at the request of several Native American Tribes in Eastern Washington that objected to the 
‘bounty’ – it is a statewide change for all programs. 
 
Harding stated an updated budget is attached to the resolution. Brotherton moved approval of 
Resolution 279 Budget Amendment 001. The motion was seconded. Cooper stated he was 
abstaining from the vote as he is in the process of utilizing the program. The motion carried with a 
majority of those present. (4 yes; 1 abstain) 

 
DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
Compliance Program Update 
 
R. Moody stated we did receive a lot of complaints during the smokey timeframe. Most areas 
continued to allow recreational fires.  In an asbestos case, ORCAA vs. Campbell, we prevailed, and 
they have until November 6 to appeal to Superior Court. 
 
Engineering Program Update 
 
Goodin stated we may be thinking there would be a lull in permitting, but the opposite is true. It 
appears to be a statewide thing, Goodin noted. Speaking to his counterparts at other agencies, 
there has been an uptick in permitting actions. Goodin explained it appears the permitting is related 
mostly to wood products and waste management (compost, etc.). Going over some of the 
permitting activities, Goodin stated Ascensus has applied to apply a limit on their potential to emit. 
Doing this, Goodin noted, will get them out of the Title V program. BHP Billiton Canada was a 
proposed potash facility that has since been abandoned. DES Capitol Campus, like Ascensus in 
that they have established limits on their emissions in order to stay out of Title V program as well. 
Grays Harbor Energy, which has been on this list for quite some time, has been completed. We 
have a contract with EFSEC to write permits and conduct compliance activities for this facility. 
EFSEC has finally issued the permit.  
 
Goodin continued with Sierra Pacific Industries (SPI). They produce kiln dried lumber and have 
applied to replace their kilns with 8 new ones. They are also requesting an increase in the 
production limits which will result in an increase in emissions. Due to the nature of their permitting it 
will trigger Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) permit from Ecology. We are currently 



 

 

Page 3 of 5 

working with Ecology to assist SPI in getting through the PSD action. Silver Springs has asked to 
modify their compost facility. This request will increase their capacity and emissions. We have 
drafted a preliminary determination and sent it to them for review. We have requested additional 
controls on the first stages of composting and expect to have several meetings with them and their 
consultant.  
 
Cathey questioned why we would allow them to increase their emissions when they are already an 
odor problem. Cathey felt the issue of wanting more control at the front end seems to be an old 
issue, not a new one. Goodin explained it is new. In this case they trigger a permit. Because of this, 
we can evaluate emissions and in doing so, we have the authority to require more controls to meet 
the standards in order to allow the increase in emissions. If they implement the controls we are 
requesting, their emissions should be substantially reduced.  
 
Air Quality Program Update 
 
Hadley explained while the air quality in September was not great, it did allow for beautiful 
photography. She noted the cover photo was shared by Lauren Whybrew’s sister and was taken in 
the San Juan Islands. Hadley noted the summary for September shows quite a lot more numbers 
than we typically see, and, she had to add another category that we have not used.  Hazardous 
was added and used in every county. It was pointed out the averages for the month, in each county, 
were well over the unhealthy levels every day. Hadley added, if we weren’t able to file for an 
exceptional event with EPA this would be indicative that we are over the max for the year. 
 
Hadley stated she has gotten many people asking if this is the worst air quality we have ever had. 
Hadley had a chart showing 2018 we spent more time in Unhealthy conditions, however 2020 we 
hit hazardous.  Over 20% of the time, between June and September 2020, was spent in very 
unhealthy or worse.  Hadley shared charts to show the same information in different ways. The 
answer to the question is yes, this is the worst smoke event we have had in this area. 
 
September is officially the last month we track ozone as it is a summer pollutant. Hadley noted as it 
shows, we never reached the standard, however there was a spike around September 7 through 
11. That spike may be attributed to the first smoke event we had. Hadley explained wildfire smoke 
can amplify ozone concentrations, but it is a complicated relationship because it can also suppress 
ozone buildup. 
 
We were able to deal without sites during these episodes. We fixed the Shelton site after it began 
having communication issues during the smoke event. The Raymond monitor was very dirty after 
the smoke events and we had some trouble getting it calibrated so we did lose some data. Hadley 
noted she continues to work on the Community Toxics project which is due next month. Hadley 
plans on giving a summary of that project at a later meeting. Hadley stated she assisted Ecology on 
answering questions regarding the smoke events from the public. We received excellent feedback 
on the blog.  Hadley also noted she attended an EPA Purple Air webinar where they explained the 
corrections, quality control of the data and how they are using the data. She stated there is a 
correction factor on the site that people should use (EPA correction factor). 
 
Hadley wanted to share she had talked to the National Weather Service regarding their ability to 
assist in tracking future smoke events and assisting in alerting people. There was some discussion 
regarding WAQA and AQI and their differences and confusion it does cause some people. Hadley 
stated the National Weather Service does use the AQI. 

 
Education and Outreach 
 
Nelson added the AQI/WAQA issue has been a discussion of the Northwest Air Quality 
Communicators’ group for many years. The basic message the communicators’ group pushes is 
regardless of which measurement you look at, if you leave the green zone, take the proper 



 

 

Page 4 of 5 

precautions. McNair added the other air agencies aren’t consistent with what they use either. Some 
use WAQA and some use the AQI. She noted the air directors will be discussing this at the January 
meeting.   
 
Nelson continued, noting he added several links to the Board packet. We have several links to our 
online mapping, some of which are available to the public while others are strictly for inhouse use 
only. Our online burn permits are tracked for compliance and you can see we currently have 22 
ongoing land clearing burns in our jurisdiction. Our Thurston County burn permit program is 
extremely successful, so successful that 14 days into the burn season and we have about 1000 
burn permits open in Thurston County. Nelson explained a few years ago, 5% of those permits 
would have been invalid due to being in a no burn area. Last year that number dropped to 1.5% and 
thus far, we have had 8 invalid permits for the nearly 1000 we received. Each year the education 
has helped remind people where they can’t burn.  There has been some discussion, Nelson stated, 
to make the online permitting jurisdiction-wide through our website. We have a few fire districts that 
still offer paper permits, so we will be discussing this with them. 
 
Our email alert program, Nelson continued, is growing. In the last few days, we had over 500 new 
subscribers. We currently have approximately 10,000 subscribers, up from 4,800 last year at this 
time. Of those subscribers, 30% of them share or push those emails out to their own subscribers. 
 
We also have a gasoline facility map that has been utilized by quite a few people. The information is 
there for not just the public, but for the contractors and stations to assist them in meeting the testing 
and permitting requirements. 
 
As discussed previously, we have added $35,000 to our woodstove change out program and we 
are looking good to fully expend our funds by the end of the calendar year. Nelson stated he hopes 
to request additional funds if there are any available after the first of the year. Nelson showed a 
map of the change outs, noting there is many more in the Olympia/Lacey area as that is where we 
started our efforts. 
 
Cooper asked Nelson to send him the data he cited regarding outdoor burning in Thurston County. 
He was curious if there is another data point from the compliance that matches, or doesn’t, 
complaints to burning in the cities and urban growth area. If that is something we can pull together it 
would be great. Cooper reminded everyone that we had done outreach a couple of years ago to talk 
about charging a fee for outdoor burn permits and the feedback was, because of the lack of 
compliance in the cities and UGAs, we had more work to do. Cooper noted this appears to be 
showing a huge success. He was interested in seeing what the outreach plan and timeline would be 
to get to a full regional online permit and, an outreach plan to get to a decision around a fee in 
Thurston County in time for our budget season (this upcoming budget). 
 
Finance/Administrative Update 
 
Harding thanked Pratt for covering the first quarter finance report, noting it was a very positive 
report. She reiterated we have received 30% of our budgeted revenue. Our grant work and 
reimbursements reflecting that will be seen in the 2nd quarter of our fiscal year. On the expenditure 
side, we have expended 24% of our funds. A large portion of that is attributed to our insurance 
payment. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
 
McNair noted majority of staff are still working remotely and we anticipate engineers will be working 
remotely (other than Mark Goodin), until sometime next year. McNair stated her focus is, once we 
have a vaccine, we can start bringing staff back into the office. McNair noted she has been 
encouraging staff to get their flu shots and is hopeful they are getting them. Compliance staff 
continues to do the inspections they can and also responding to complaints.  



 

 

Page 5 of 5 

As mentioned earlier, the AQI/WAQA discussion was a major portion of the Air Directors’ Meeting in 
September. We, the air directors, will be pushing Ecology to take a stronger role on this issue. 
 
McNair noted, during the heavy smoke days, Mason, Jefferson and Pacific counties put into place 
‘no recreational fires’ when the smoke was very bad. It was unfortunate the other 3 counties 
continued to allow recreational fires. McNair stated perhaps each of the Board members could 
consider, or discuss with staff, not allowing recreational fires when we have these extreme events.  
Cooper suggested staff send an email to the counties citing some of Hadley’s data and mention the 
3 counties that did restrict recreational burning. McNair stated she could do that if the rest of the 
Board was ok with it. Brotherton noted it wasn’t the commissioners who made the decision, it was 
the Fire District, so including them in the email would be helpful. 
 
McNair reminded everyone there is no meeting in November, so our next meeting is December. 
Cooper noted December will be the last meeting for Cormier and asked if we knew of any other 
changes. McNair stated there could be changes in January when the commission/city councils 
chooses the Boards you will be part of. We are sorry to see Cormier leave, McNair stated. 
 
Cooper stated January might be a good time to remind our jurisdictions they can have a staff 
alternate to attend in the place of the appointed Board member. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Nelson stated he forgot to mention he has been working on asbestos and demolition education to 
the counties and cities and wanted to call out Mark Siegler of Grays Harbor County. He was 
specifically complimentary of ORCAA, and wanted to acknowledge Mike Shults for the outstanding 
work he has done in their communities. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 11:22 a.m. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the ORCAA Board of  
Directors held on October 14, 2020, in Olympia, Washington. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Francea L. McNair, Executive Director   Jim Cooper, Chair 
Olympic Region Clean Air Agency   ORCAA Board of Directors    
 
DATED: _______________________________ 



 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
2940 Limited Lane NW 

Olympia, Washington 98502 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING – via zoom 
 

April 8, 2020 
 

Members present:  Jim Cooper, City of Olympia (Chair) 
   Mary Ellen Winborn, Clallam County 

Joan Cathey, City of Tumwater 
Greg Brotherton, Jefferson County 

    
Members absent:  
 
Staff Present: Fran McNair, Executive Director and Debbie Moody, Office 

Manager/Recorder 
 
Cooper called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m.  Meeting done through Zoom – introductions were 
done for the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Cooper asked for approval of the Agenda. Brotherton moved approval, the motion was seconded 
and carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Brotherton moved approval of the Minutes of March 11. The motion was seconded and carried 
unanimously. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Cooper had requested a session be placed on the agenda, if needed. For the committee’s benefit, 
Cooper noted because we are in a virtual meeting and it is being recorded, it is nearly impossible to 
have an executive session. Cooper noted if everyone was ok with no Executive Session we will 
move on. The committee agreed we could move forward. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION and SALARY 
 
Evaluation 
 
Cooper explained we received salary information from McNair and Moody had sent on evaluation 
summary of those she had received. Cooper noted 3 members did not send in evaluations. He 
noted he also received one contact from staff which was 2-3 paragraphs of glowing review of 
McNair.  
 
Cooper recommended we reflect on what we saw on the document.  
 
Cathey stated she felt McNair deserved 5s across the board. She noted McNair has broad 
experience and it adds to our agency. She has good contacts and is smart in her use of them, 
making a good impression of how ORCAA is seen in the broader community.  
 



 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Brotherton also included an evaluation form and overall felt McNair makes professionalism and 
responsive look easy.  He did note his evaluation form did include things he would like to see more 
of but admitted some of it is due to his lack of experience. 
 
Winborn stated she has said many times ORCAA is a highlight for her. The way McNair runs the 
meetings is well done and they are positive, informative and objective. Winborn noted she has been 
on the Board for 5 years and feels that is a good amount of time to see different aspects, and thus 
far McNair has handled things beautifully. 
 
Cooper added there is a fine balance between citizens and being graceful and professional all at 
the same time. 

 
Winborn added, since she has been on the Board, we have had quite a few public hearings and she 
wanted to note how impressed she was by the way McNair handled those. We may not have had a 
lot of public; it was obvious she was capable of dealing with a room full of people. 
 
Cooper thanked staff for the good data set, it is validating. 
 
Salary 
 
Cooper noted his recommendation, based on where we are in the budget process, while we’d love 
to give our director a large raise with the position we are in financially during this time, we keep the 
director’s salary tied to what the rest of the staff will or will not get.  Cooper did note the finance 
committee is looking at either a 0% or 1.5% increase in fees and pay. We did look at a 3% increase 
previously, however due to Covid-19 situation we felt it was more responsible to go lower and see 
how we come out this year. 
 
Winborn asked if we do evaluations each year. Cooper noted we do evaluations every other year. 
Winborn asked, due to Covid, if we could have another evaluation next year to see if things have 
changed. If it weren’t for the unknown, Winborn stated, I think we would have done something 
different.  Cooper stated we can review her salary anytime.  Brotherton agreed with both; with the 
situation as it is, we are impressed with the job McNair is doing and would like to compensate her, 
but under the circumstances it is best to match it to staff this year and seeing how it goes. Cathey 
was unclear what direction the committee was taking. Brotherton noted he felt waiting a year to re-
evaluate or look at salary because we don’t know what the reverberation will be from Covid. Cooper 
agreed. Cathey reiterated, you are wanting to wait a year however we have the option of doing it 
earlier if we choose. Cooper stated that was correct. Cooper added, as a board, we can look at the 
budget at any time during the year. If we feel we need to make changes, we can. 
 
McNair thanked the committee for the evaluation and support. She stated the leadership the entire 
Board provides is very beneficial to her in helping her do her job. She did ask, if things recover 
sooner that the committee look at her salary due to the fact she lags so far behind everyone else. 
Under the circumstances, she is hopeful we get the 1.5% increase for staff as they do deserve it. 
The amount needed to cover the 1.5% is a small number regarding the overall budget.  
 
McNair did note she is ok with constructive criticism and if there is something the Board needs her 
to do, she would appreciate hearing about. Each of our counties are very different and we want to 
be cognizant of that and work with you all with your different perspectives. Cooper felt McNair takes 
constructive criticism on an ongoing basis, which resulted in a great evaluation. 
 
Cooper requested a motion to forward the evaluation to the Board with a recommendation to tie 
McNair’s salary to whatever increase staff receives during the budget process. Also, note the Board 
will review the salary again in a year, if not sooner.  Brotherton asked if there is any formal wrap up 



 

 

Page 3 of 3 

of this conversation and evaluation for McNair file. McNair noted she typically saves the summary 
report in the file. 
 
Brotherton moved to forward the evaluation to the Board with a recommendation keeping salary tied 
to staff increase. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
Cooper reminded the committee the second half of that would be to discuss with the Board the 
review of McNair’s salary in a year, if not before, once we have a better understanding of the Covid 
situation. Winborn agreed to make that a motion. It was seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:57 a.m. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the ORCAA Board of  
Directors held on April 8, 2020, in Olympia, Washington. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Francea L. McNair, Executive Director   Jim Cooper, Chair 
Olympic Region Clean Air Agency   ORCAA Board of Directors    
 
DATED: _______________________________ 



Fund: Warrant #'s:  Scheduled Payment Date: Issue Amount
6471    

63008283 - 63008293 October 20 10,316.46$                   

63008294 - 63008300 October 21 8,500.00$                     

573338 - 573354 October - Payroll 124,426.96$                 
8140, 8144, 8148 October - Benefits 41,473.42$                   

Auto - Mo. Wire Transfer T.C. Accounting Charge 595.34$                        

63008301 - 63008319 November 12 10,004.53$                   

63008320 - 63008326 November 18 1,508.15$                     

63008327 - 63008332 November 23 13,100.00$                   

575949 - 575966 November - Payroll 124,905.77$                 
8161, 8165, 8169 November - Benefits 41,569.08$                   

Auto - Mo. Wire Transfer T.C. Accounting Charge 595.34$                        

Auto Wire Transfer December 1 43,551.67$                   
Office Bldg - Debt Service

63008333 December 2 95.00$                         

420,641.72$                

Total Expenditures This Period:

Included with Consent Agenda for Monthly Board of Directors Meeting.

2940 Limited Lane NW, Olympia WA  98502-6503

 Board Approval of Expenditures, Disbursements, and Wire Transfers
SUBMITTED FOR THE PERIOD

October 9, 2020 through December 3, 2020

OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY

12/3/2020Bd Journal



Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

63008283 10/20/20 Air Handlers Inc. 10200 $665.15

63008284 10/20/20 Capital Business Machines, Inc. 10200 94.31

63008285 10/20/20 City of Olympia 10200 669.81

63008286 10/20/20 Department of Ecology 10200 2,001.53

63008287 10/20/20 Employment Security Dept. 10200 950.51

63008288 10/20/20 Labor & Industries 10200 1,567.67

63008289 10/20/20 Mountain Mist Water 10200 32.49

63008290 10/20/20 Pacific County Department 10200 200.00

63008291 10/20/20 Pacific NW Inter Sec Air Pol Assn 10200 160.00

63008292 10/20/20 Sunrise Pest Management, Inc. 10200 79.04

63008293 10/20/20 U.S. Bank 10200 3,895.95

63008294 10/21/20 David Brownell 10200 500.00

63008295 10/21/20 Capital City Stove 10200 1,200.00

63008296 10/21/20 G & G Heating 10200 1,800.00

63008297 10/21/20 Kathleen Jones 10200 500.00

63008298 10/21/20 C&C Clean Sweep 10200 2,200.00

63008299 10/21/20 Sunset Air Incorporated 10200 1,800.00

63008300 10/21/20 Kitrick Wulf 10200 500.00

Auto-Transfer 10/30/20 Thurston County Treasurer's Office 10200 595.34

573338-573354 10/30/20 Salaries & Benefits 10200 165,900.38

63008301 11/12/20 ABC Legal Services, LLC 10200 79.50

63008302 11/12/20 Cabbros Cleaning Services, LLC 10200 823.00

63008303 11/12/20 City of Shelton 10200 525.00

63008304 11/12/20 Comcast Cable Com., Inc. 10200 378.41

63008305 11/12/20 Comcast Cable Com., Inc. 10200 118.72

63008306 11/12/20 Ebix, Inc. 10200 42.18

63008307 11/12/20 Intermedia.net, Inc. 10200 300.21

63008308 11/12/20 Law, Lyman, Daniel, 10200 2,342.45

63008309 11/12/20 Lew Rents West, Inc. 10200 328.20

63008310 11/12/20 Mountain Mist Water 10200 25.10

63008311 11/12/20 Office Depot, Inc. 10200 96.17

63008312 11/12/20 Pacific Northwest Publishing Company 10200 290.30

63008313 11/12/20 Pacific County Sheriff's Office 10200 110.00

63008314 11/12/20 Pacific Disposal 10200 69.82

63008315 11/12/20 Praxair Distribution, Inc. 10200 6.89

63008316 11/12/20 Puget Sound Energy 10200 676.43

63008317 11/12/20 PUD #1 of Clallam County 10200 191.40

63008318 11/12/20 U.S. Bank 10200 3,446.96

63008319 11/12/20 Verizon Wireless, Bellevue 10200 153.79

63008320 11/18/20 Capital Business Machines, Inc. 10200 97.65

63008321 11/18/20 Department of Ecology 10200 1,036.37

63008322 11/18/20 Mountain Mist Water 10200 17.72

63008323 11/18/20 MRSC Rosters 10200 135.00

63008324 11/18/20 Tags Awards & Specialties 10200 16.41

63008325 11/18/20 Thurston County Sheriffs Office 10200 130.00

63008326 11/18/20 Washington Finance Officers Assoc. 10200 75.00

63008327 11/23/20 Americool Heating and Air 10200 1,800.00

63008328 11/23/20 Capital City Stove 10200 1,200.00

63008329 11/23/20 Capital Heating & Cooling Inc. 10200 1,800.00

63008330 11/23/20 C&C Clean Sweep 10200 500.00

63008331 11/23/20 Olympia Fireplace Supply Inc. 10200 3,600.00

63008332 11/23/20 Sunset Air Incorporated 10200 4,200.00

Auto-Transfer 10/30/20 Thurston County Treasurer's Office 10200 595.34

575949-575966 10/30/20 Salaries & Benefits 10200 166,474.85

Auto-Transfer 12/1/20 Thurston County Treasurer's Office-Debt Service 10200 43,551.67

63008333 12/2/20 Thurston County Sheriffs Office 10200 95.00

Total $420,641.72

OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY
2940 Limited Lane NW, Olympia WA  98502-6503

Check Register of Expenditures, Disbursements, and Wire Transfers
SUBMITTED FOR THE PERIOD

October 9, 2020 through December 3, 2020

12/3/2020Bd Ck Reg



Community Toxics Project Summary

• Primary objective: 

• Evaluate the level of hazardous air pollutants associated with 
woodsmoke PM2.5

• Secondary objective: 

• Improve and evaluate acrolein measurement methods and provide 
students with research opportunities



• Collected air samples at the Lacey monitoring site between
August 2018 and May 2019

• Used positive matrix factorization to identify 5 primary sources
of PM2.5, CO and various toxic compounds

• Focused on: benzo(a)pyrene, naphthalene, benzene, and
acetaldehyde as most likely to negatively impact human health

• Assessed hazardous air pollutants (HAPs, toxics) relative to
woodsmoke PM2.5 and CO

Community Toxics Project Summary



Community Toxics Project Summary
PAHs

“Aged” wildfire smoke 
Low temp/efficiency wood stove
High temp/efficiency wood stove

Gas & diesel

Background



Community Toxics Project Summary

• Carbon monoxide and PM2.5 
are highly correlated

• Share the same pollution 
sources

• Relative to PM2.5 wildfires 
emit less carbon monoxide 
than wood stoves



Carbon MonoxidePM2.5

Ba
P

Model Measured Model Measured

N
ap

h.
Be

nz
en

e
Ac

et
al

d.



U V absorption indicates the 
presence of PAH

CO and U V are highly correlated 

The CO and U V relationship is 
the same in summer and winter

Indicates that PAH are 
transformed (oxidized) but still 
present in wildfire plume

Oxidized PAH more toxic

Naphthalene

O3

O3

O3

U V



• HAPs will exceed the carcinogenic screening levels for several 
pollutants at woodsmoke PM2.5 equal to the annual NAAQS 

• HAPs are unlikely to reach levels considered to be an elevated cancer 
risk at the annual PM2.5 NAAQS

• CO monitoring may be a good proxy for benzene, where sources are 
limited

Community Toxics Project Summary



• Students developed a method for acrolein sample collection and 
analysis

• Preliminary evaluations were conducted, but not finalized due to 
COVID restrictions and accessing the lab

• Preliminary results indicate a higher sensitivity to acrolein compared 
to the current method

• Detailed description of their work is included in the EPA final report

Community Toxics Project Summary



Ethylene Oxide was added to the list of analytes after the proj ect started
Found in Lacey at levels similar to those in Seattle and above the CRSL
Working with the Dept. of Ecology on pilot study to assess EtO levels in WA



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



Industrial / Commercial Air Permits
Pending and Final Permits for period from 10/8/2020 to 12/4/2020

Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA modify condition 
#3d of 19NOC1336-
overvarnish % by 
weight of CAS 111-
76-2

8/18/2020Manufacturing JADNOR 20NOR1454 12/4/2020final permit delivered

MERIDIAN CORNER 
TEXACO

OLYMPIA Correct testing 
requirement errors 
in NOC.

10/29/2020Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWADM 20ADM1461 12/3/2020final permit delivered

OLYMPIA SCHOOL 
DISTRICT

TUMWATE
R

After the fact 
review of a gasoline 
dispensing facility

9/30/2020School Facility LEWNOC 20NOC1460 10/23/2020final permit delivered

SIMPSON DOOR CO McCLEARY Install a priming 
paint booth

9/15/2020Wood Products MVGNOC 20NOC1457 10/29/2020final permit delivered

AFC BODY SHOP LACEY 5/17/2019Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 19NOC1357 7/18/2019waiting on SEPA

AIRPORT SHELL TUMWATE
R

correct Conditions 
of Approval

8/21/2020Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWADM 20ADM1455 9/3/2020hand off for final signatures

CAPITOL CITY PRESS TUMWATE
R

after the fact 
installation of 
additional offset 
printing press

9/8/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 20NOC1458 12/4/2020hand off for final signatures

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA renew 15AOP1129 6/11/2020Manufacturing JADAOP 20AOP1446 12/1/2020draft in progress

Friday, December 4, 2020 Page 1 of 3



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA modify the existing 
production lines 
and construct a 
third production 
line at their metal 
beverage can 
manufacturing 
facility

8/10/2020Manufacturing JADNOC 20NOC1451 12/2/2020completeness determination 
pending

CUSTOM 
FIBERGLASS

ABERDEEN 8/24/2020Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 20NOC1424 10/1/2020incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

McKINLEY PAPER 
COMPANY

PORT 
ANGELES

renew AOP 
(11AOP816)

9/4/2018Printing/Paper 
Products

MVGAOP 18AOP1300 10/7/2020draft in progress

PANELTECH HOQUIAM modify the dry-end 
permanent total 
enclosure on Paper 
Coating Line 1

11/6/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 20NOC1464 11/25/2020draft pending internal review

PANELTECH HOQUIAM renew AOP 
11AOP864

4/2/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

JADAOP 20AOP1437 12/1/2020draft in progress

PANELTECH HOQUIAM modify the dry-end 
permanent total 
enclosure on Paper 
Coating Line 1

11/6/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 20NOC1464 11/25/2020draft pending source review

PETROCARD - PORT 
CFN

ABERDEEN After-the-fact 
review of a gasoline 
dispensing facility

11/16/2020Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOC 20NOC1465 11/25/2020completeness determination 
pending

RESURRECTION 
AUTO BODY AND 

OLYMPIA install after-the-fact 
spray booth

9/12/2017Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 17NOC1251 9/13/2017on hold - pending initial payment

SEQUIM CHEVRON SEQUIM Correct testing 
requirement errors 
in NOC.

10/29/2020Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWADM 20ADM1462 11/20/2020hand off to Debbie for final 
paymnet

SIERRA PACIFIC 
INDUSTRIES - 

ABERDEEN renew AOP permit 1/11/2012Wood Products AMAOP 12AOP873 12/1/2020draft pending internal review

Friday, December 4, 2020 Page 2 of 3



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

SIERRA PACIFIC 
INDUSTRIES - 

ABERDEEN install 8 lumber dry 
kilns

7/1/2020Wood Products AMNOC 20NOC1449 12/4/2020public noticing period initiated

SIERRA PACIFIC 
INDUSTRIES - 

SHELTON modify condition 
3G of 15NOC1128

2/13/2019Wood Products MVGNOR 19NOR1326 10/7/2020draft in progress

SIERRA PACIFIC 
INDUSTRIES - 

SHELTON Align due dates for 
ACC and SAMR

2/1/2019Wood Products MVGRFC 19RFC1321 10/7/2020draft in progress

SILVER SPRINGS 
ORGANICS LLC

RAINIER change conditions 
in 10NOC754

5/18/2020Composting MVGNOR 20NOR1445 10/7/2020draft pending internal review

SILVER SPRINGS 
ORGANICS LLC

RAINIER change conditions 
in 10NOC754

5/18/2020Composting MVGNOR 20NOR1445 10/7/2020draft pending source review

SIMPSON DOOR CO McCLEARY correct condition R2 1/30/2019Wood Products MVGRFC 19RFC1319 10/14/2020final pending final payment

WASHINGTON 
CORRECTIONS 

SHELTON install 2 standby 
power generators

11/2/2020Corrections 
Center

AMNOC 20NOC1463 12/1/2020initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

WESTPORT LLC WESTPORT modify #07AOP575 
to remove 
conditions 4.18 and 
6.12 and 
incorporate 
requirements from 
40 CFR Part 63 
Subpart II.

9/3/2009Fiberglass/Mari
ne Services

LEWREV 09REV702 11/25/2020draft in progress

WESTPORT LLC WESTPORT renew AOP 3/7/2014Fiberglass/Mari
ne Services

LEWAOP 14AOP1029 11/25/2020draft in progress

WESTROCK CP LLC LACEY After-the-fact 
review of a printing 
facility

11/16/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

LEWNOC 20NOC1466 11/25/2020draft in progress

Friday, December 4, 2020 Page 3 of 3



2020

Odelle Hadley, PhD



October 2020 Air Quality Summary – PM2.5

Aberdeen 1.8 µg m-3 5.9 µg m-3 12.3 µg m-3 31

Cheeka Peak1 0 µg m-3 1.4 µg m-3 3.6 µg m-3 23

Lacey 1.8 µg m-3 6.3 µg m-3 13.9 µg m-3 28 3

Port Angeles2 3.4 µg m-3 8.1 µg m-3 16.4 µg m-3 20 4

Port Townsend 3.1 µg m-3 5.7 µg m-3 11.9 µg m-3 31

Shelton 1.0 µg m-3 6.3 µg m-3 12.8 µg m-3 31

Raymond 1.5 µg m-3 5.3 µg m-3 16.6 µg m-3 31

Minimum
Maximum G

O
O
D

M
O
D

U
S
G

Average U
H

V
U
H

1) Monitor needed calibration
2) Instrument replacement needed



November 2020 Air Quality Summary – PM2.5

Aberdeen 2 µg m-3 6 µg m-3 11 µg m-3 30

Cheeka Peak1 0 µg m-3 1.5 µg m-3 6 µg m-3 27

Lacey 2.2 µg m-3 5.8 µg m-3 15.4 µg m-3 28 2

Port Angeles 4.2 µg m-3 8.4 µg m-3 15.6 µg m-3 27 3

Port Townsend 2.9 µg m-3 5.1 µg m-3 8.4 µg m-3 30

Shelton 2.1 µg m-3 7.6 µg m-3 17.2 µg m-3 24 6

Raymond 1.2 µg m-3 6.2 µg m-3 12.4 µg m-3 30

Minimum
Maximum G

O
O
D

M
O
D

U
S
G

Average U
H

V
U
H

1) Data logger didn’t boot properly after short power loss



Other Monitoring News
• 1 visit to Cheeka Peak with Dept. of Ecology for audit

– A negative COVID-19 test is now required to access CPO

• 3 trips to Port Angeles in October

– Replaced monitor, installed room temp probe

• Finalizing Community Toxics report to EPA (significant time)

• Chaired NW Airquest October meeting

• Several follow-up meetings to discuss cross-agency co-
ordination during future wildfire smoke events

• Started evaluating other low-cost air sensors

• Working with Dan to provide sensor guidance on web-site



Contact

Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring Specialist
360-539-7610 x105

odelle.hadley@orcaa.org

https://www.orcaa.org




